
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND CANNON FALLS CITY COUNCIL  

FROM: LAURA QUALEY, COMMUNITY & BUSINESS DEV. SPECIALIST 

SUBJECT: APPROVING RESOLUTION 2698 FOR FINAL PLAT AND PUD FINAL 
PLANS AND PUD AGREEMENT

DATE: SEPTEMBER 5, 2023   

BACKGROUND:  The Cannon Falls Economic Development Authority (the "Developer") 
owns 41.84 acres in the City limits identified as PID #523500070 (the "Property") and aspires to 
develop housing for Cannon Falls called Hardwood Estates (the "Project").  

The Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider the project on Monday, August 14, 
2023 for the proposal of a Preliminary Plat, Rezone and Planned Unit Development Stage and 
made a recommendation (3-1) to move it forward to Council for consideration and approval. On 
Tuesday, August 15th, Council passed Resolution 2694 (4-2) conditionally approving the 
preliminary plat, planned unit development. Also on Tuesday, August 15th, Council held a public 
hearing and first reading of Ordinance 395 to rezone R-2 Single Family Residential to an R-3 
Medium Density Residential to accommodate townhome (dual family) style lots and also a 
Planned Unit Development which was conditionally adopted (5 in favor; 0 opposed; 1 
abstention).  

This second subdivision of Hardwood Estates will include 106 lots which includes a variety of 
sized lots accommodating a multitude of style homes as guided by the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan. The Developer is seeking simultaneous approvals of the Final Plat, Final PUD Plan (Phase 
1) consisting of 29 residential lots and the PUD Agreement which are all included for your 
review.

The EDA held a Special Meeting on Wednesday, August 30, 2023 to review, consider and 
recommends approval of the Final plat, Final PUD Plan and PUD Agreement for Hardwood 
Estates Second Subdivision and advertising the project for bids.

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION:  City Council is being asked to adopt Resolution 2698 to 
approve the Final plat, Final PUD Plan, and PUD Agreement. Upon approval of Resolution 
2698;

Staff requests advertising the project for bids by approving Resolution 2699.
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August 31, 2023 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Neil Jensen 
City Administrator 
City of Cannon Falls 
918 River Road 
Cannon Falls, MN 55009 
 
RE:  Cannon Falls, MN  

Hardwood Estates 2nd Subdivision 
Review of Final Plat and Plans 

 
Dear Neil: 
 
We have reviewed the revised final plat and plans for the referenced project.  We offer the 
following comments: 
 

1. This plat will abut MnDOT right-of-way and future phases will abut Goodhue County right-
of-way.  Both agencies have been requested to review and provide comments.  As of this 
date, the City has not received any comments.  When comments are received, the City 
will need to review and respond accordingly.     
 

2. A portion of the current drainage from the parcel to the south will be conveyed through the 
westerly portion of the subdivision to 71st Avenue Way.  This runoff currently drains to 71st 
Avenue Way and through the cemetery.  A portion of the existing drainage will be diverted 
away from this area and directed to the proposed storm water basin via storm sewer.  This 
means less drainage will be directed to the cemetery.  In the future, 71st Avenue Way will 
require storm sewer to accommodate development to the south of Hardwood Estates 2nd. 
 

3. The City should discuss obtaining a temporary easement from the property owner to the 
south.  This would be necessary to construct 72nd Avenue Way to the south property line.   
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We recommend approval of the proposed plat and plans conditional upon the above items being 
addressed and the execution of the development agreement.    
 
Please contact us if you have any questions.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
WHKS & CO. 
 
 
 
William Angerman, P.E. 
Cannon Falls Consulting City Engineer 
 
Cc: Zach Logelin, City of Cannon Falls 
 Jed Petersen, City of Cannon Falls 
 Jesse Preston, WHKS 
 Laura Qualey, CEDA 
 Jess Greenwood, Goodhue County 

Daren Sikkink, WHKS 



52.350.0070

Outlot A of Hardwood Estates, according to the recorded plat
thereof, Goodhue County, MN. Excepting, Parcel 2 of Goodhue County right of way Plat

 

No. 211, according to the recorded plat thereof, Goodhue County, MN.  Containing 41.84 acres, 
more or less.

Economic Development Authority of Cannon Falls

507-263-9312

918 River Road

Cannon Falls, MN 55009

Jon Dahl

507-263-7563

300 W. Main St.

Cannon Falls, MN 55009

jddahl@merchantsbank.com



9/1/2023

9/1/2023

9/1/2023

WHKS has completed the final plans based on the criteria required per the 

PUD ordinances for final plat and final PUD review. 



9/1/2023 450.00

Zach Logelin

8/14/2023

8/15/23

8/14/2023

Approval of Final Plat & Final PUD and Rezone approval


